
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Tuesday, December 15, 2020 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (DB) 

5. Special Presentations 

a. Retirement Proclamation - Judge Karen Owen 

b. Retirement Proclamation - Clerk of Courts Sheila Perry 

c. Retirement Presentation - Eatonton-Putnam Chamber of Commerce President Roddie Anne Blackwell 

 

Zoning Public Hearing 
6. Request by C. Roy Embry for conditional use at 621 New Phoenix Road. Presently zoned C-1 [Map 075, 

Parcel 050, District 2] (staff-P&D) 

7. Request by Willie David Copelan to rezone 5.00 acres from AG-2 to C-2 at 931 Pea Ridge Road [Map 

092, Part of Parcel 017001001, District 2] (staff-P&D) 

 The applicant is requesting to table this item. 

8. Request by Zeke Long, agent for Tyler Land Holdings LLC, to rezone 2.76 acres from C-1 to C-2 on 

Greensboro Road [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 062, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

 The applicant is requesting to table this item. 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
9. Public Comments 

10. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - December 4, 2020 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - December 4, 2020 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

11. Recommendations for Appointment to the Hospital Authority - Post 3 (staff-CC) 

12. Declaration of Road Abandonment of a portion of Horton Drive and authorization for Chairman to sign 

required documents (staff-CC) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
13. County Manager Report 

14. County Attorney Report 

15. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Closing 
16. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

6. Request by C. Roy Embry for conditional use at 621 New Phoenix Road. Presently zoned C-1 [Map 

075, Parcel 050, District 2] (staff-P&D)

2



Request by C. Roy Embry for conditional use at 621 New Phoenix Road.  Presently zoned C-1 [Map 075, 
Parcel 050, District 2].  

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting a conditional use to build a fertilizer storage/blending facility that is not listed in Sec. 66-
103. - Uses allowed of C-1 in the Putnam County code of ordinances. The proposed structure will measure 

approximately 4,000 square foot (80x50). The conditional use will be consistent with the current use of the 
property. 

 
The property is currently surrounded by AG-1 property on three sides with only one C-1 property adject to it. One of 
the adjacent AG-1 properties is own by the applicant. The proposed structures will be approximately 200' from the 

road, with the parking area being 25' from the road. The nearest dwelling unit is over 500 feet from the proposed 
location. Other than during construction the proposed use is not anticipated to create any objectionable noise and 

vibration beyond what would typically be associated with the adjacent AG-1 use or the previous cement company 
that was in operation at this location. The intended use should not have a significant impact on the traffic generated 
in the area beyond that which is associated with an agricultural type business. This use would be allowed in a C-2 or 

Industrial district; however, the proposed location is adjacent to Hwy 44 which is one of the main corridors in 
Putnam County. 

 
Therefore, staff does not recommend that this property be rezoned to a district which would allow light industrial or 

outside display or use, however, as the subject property has limited road frontage (95') on Hwy 44, the intended 
facility will front on New Phoenix Road (approximately 400'), the nature of the adjacent commercial properties and 
previous use of the parcel, staff recommends a conditional use be granted for a fertilizer storage/blending facility. 

 
Staff recommendation is for approval of a conditional use for a fertilizer storage/blending facility 

located on New Phoenix Rd NE [Map 075, Parcel 050. 
 

3



 

4



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Adjacent C-1 
properties owned by 
the applicant 

AG-1 property owned 
by the applicant 

Subject C-1 
Property 

House over 560 ft. 
from subject property 

House over 1200 ft. 
from subject property 

5



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval of a conditional use for a fertilizer 
storage/blending facility located on New Phoenix Rd [Map 075, Parcel 050]. 

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, December 3, 2020, at 

6:30 P.M. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 
 
PRESENT:  

Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 
Vice-Chairman Tim Pierson 

Member Maurice Hill, Jr. 
Member Martha Farley 
Member John Mitchell (not eligible for voting due to training requirements) 

 
STAFF: 

Lisa Jackson 
Ben Schmitt 

 
Request by C. Roy Embry for conditional use at 621 New Phoenix Road. Presently zoned C-1. [Map 075, Parcel 
050, District 2]. * Mr. Embry represented this request. He stated that the property used to be a concrete plant, 

and now he wanted to fix the property to store fertilizer. That is the reason he requested the conditional use. No 
one spoke in opposition to this request. 

 
Staff recommendation is for approval of a conditional use for a fertilizer storage/blending facility 
located on New Phoenix Rd NE [Map 075, Parcel 050]. 

 
Motion to approve the request by C. Roy Embry for a conditional use for a fertilizer storage/blending facility at 621 

New Phoenix Road [Map 075, Parcel 050] made by Member Farley and seconded by Vice-Chairman Pierson. 
Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice-Chairman Pierson, Member Farley, Member Hill. 

 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



File Attachments for Item:

7. Request by Willie David Copelan to rezone 5.00 acres from AG-2 to C-2 at 931 Pea Ridge Road [Map 

092, Part of Parcel 017001001, District 2] (staff-P&D)

The applicant is requesting to table this item.

16



17



Request by Willie David Copelan to rezone 5.00 acres from AG-2 to C-2 at 931 Pea Ridge Road. [Map 
092, Part of Parcel 017001001, District 2].  

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 5.00 acres from AG-2 to C-2 to establish a commercial business. However, C-1 
zoning is more applicable for this proposed location and use. The concept plan shows a convenience store with gas 

station fuel pumps. This proposed commercial business will be located at the corner of Georgia State Route 16 and 
Pea Ridge Road. The desired use is consistent with the allowed uses, as listed in Sec. 66-103. - Uses allowed of the 

C-1 zoning district. The C-1 use could impact a couple of nearby properties. Still, overall, it would not adversely 
affect the area given that the proposed location is at the corner of a state highway and a main arterial road. Georgia 
State Route 16 is a major thoroughfare through Putnam County, and Pea Ridge Road is an important connector 

between Georgia State Route 16, U.S. Highway 441, and the Lake Oconee area. The property can be used as it is 
currently zoned; however, it would be more marketable as commercial in its given location. Although the Future 

Land Use Comprehensive Plan is Agriculture in this area, the location of this property makes it prime for 
commercial-1 development. If approved, the proposed development could adversely impact and create congestion 
for this busy intersection. Therefore, staff recommends that the developer installs a deceleration lane on Pea Ridge 

Road. Additional right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by 
the developer to the county. 

 
The staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 5.00 acres at 931 Pea Ridge Road [Map 092, Parcel 

017001001, District 2] from AG-2 to C-1 with the following conditions:  
(1) The developer shall construct a deceleration lane in accordance with the Georgia 

Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the 

entrance on Pea Ridge Road of the development.   
(2) Additional right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall 

be dedicated by the developer to the county. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

18



 

19



 

 

 
 
 

 

House 

House 
House 

Request by Danny Copelan at 931 Pea Ridge Road from AG-2 to C-1 

20



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to rezone 5.00 acres at 931 Pea Ridge Road 
[Map 092, Parcel 017001001, District 2] from AG-2 to C-1 with the following conditions:  

(1) The developer shall construct a deceleration lane in accordance with the Georgia Department of 
Transportation Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the entrance on Pea Ridge Road of the 
development.   

(2) Additional right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by 
the developer to the county. 

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, December 3, 2020, at 

6:30 P.M. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 
 
PRESENT:  

Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 
Vice-Chairman Tim Pierson 

Member Maurice Hill, Jr. 
Member Martha Farley 

Member John Mitchell (not eligible for voting due to training requirements) 
 
STAFF: 

Lisa Jackson 
Ben Schmitt 

 
Mr. Copelan represented this request. He stated that he was previously here in September with this property; after 
meeting with the county commissioners and had learned of their safety concerns, he addressed them with his 

engineers. He wanted to address those concerns, to speak further on this, he asked Mr. Larry Moore to speak. Mr. 
Moore noted that the safety issues had been addressed. The drawings rendered had been updated to show a 

deceleration lane on the property, which matches the specifications of the deceleration lane at Harmony Crossing by 
McDonald's. The Georgia Department of Transportation has approved these plans and will reexamine them once 
approved by zoning. He also noted that there are pockets of commercial zone properties in that area. Further, he 

pointed out that the nearest gas station is in Eatonton on Sumter Street and that it is over 10 miles to the next 

21



station on 16 and Long Shoals. The station on Scuffleboro Road to Harmony Crossing is also 10 miles. The Copelan’s 
property is strategically located in the center between the other stations. It was his opinion that the convenience 

store is needed there as well. To address concerns about the placement of a commercial property on a scenic 
highway, Mr. Moore noted that he is the Chairman of the Historic Scenic Byway Corporation. He indicated that they 

are in favor of this rezoning. The property in question is not a historical, cultural, archeological, or recreational site 
that needs protection. He also noted that the project would not negatively impact the scenery. No one spoke in 
opposition to this request. 

 
Member Hill asked if they had a hazmat plan in place. Mr. Copelan noted that yes, one would be done; otherwise, 

they will not be able to proceed with their project. Chairman Marshall asked where on the lot is the building going 
to be located, because the property is long and narrow. Will it be facing Pea Ridge or 16? Mr. Copelan showed the 
location of the proposed building to the board. 

 
The staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 5.00 acres at 931 Pea Ridge Road [Map 092, Parcel 

017001001, District 2] from AG-2 to C-1 with the following conditions:  
(1) The developer shall construct a deceleration lane in accordance with the Georgia 

Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the 

entrance on Pea Ridge Road of the development.   
(2) Additional right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall 

be dedicated by the developer to the county. 
 

Motion to approve the request by Willie David Copelan, to rezone 5 acres at 931 Pea Ridge Road [Map 092, 
Parcel 017001001, District 2] from AG-2 to C-1 with the following conditions:  
1.) The developer shall construct a deceleration lane in accordance with the Georgia Department of Transportation 

Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the entrance on Pea Ridge Road of the development.  
2.) Additional right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by the 

developer to the county. 
 
Made by Member Farley, seconded by Vice-Chairman Pierson  

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice-Chairman Pierson, Member Farley, Member Hill. 
 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



092
023

092
026

092022

092 027

092 029

09
2

02
90

01

092013001

092
012

092
 01

3

092
 01

4

092 009002

092
 02

1

092 015

092 002

092
 00

7

092
 00

3

09
2 0

21
00

1

092 017

092
 00

9

092008 092 009004

092
040

092
025

Pe
a R

idg
e R

d S
E

Oconee Springs Rd SE

R-1R

AG-1

Middle Georgia Regional Commission
175 Emery Hwy

Suite C
Macon, Georgia 31217

(478) 751-6160
Web:

www.middlegeorgiarc.org

IT GIS Services

DATE: JUNE 2020

MAP 092
PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA

ZONING MAPS

µ
1:4,800SCALE RATIO:MAP SCALE: 1 " = 400 '

70 99 100
14 41 42 69 71 98 101

13 15 40 43 68 72 97 102
12 16 39 44 67 73 96 103 121
11 17 38 45 66 74 95 104 120 122
10 18 37 46 65 75 94 105 119 123
9 19 36 47 64 76 93 106 118 124 130
8 20 35 48 63 77 92 107 117 125 129
7 21 34 49 62 78 91 108 116 126 128
6 22 33 50 61 79 90 109 115 127
5 23 32 51 60 80 89 110 114
4 24 31 52 59 81 88 111
3 25 30 53 58 82 87 112
2 26 29 54 57 83 86 113
1 27 28 55 56 84 85 .

TAX MAP 
GRID GEOGRAPHIC FEATURE LEGEND

Eatonton Limits
County Boundary
Roads
Parcels
Parcel_Hooks

Zoning
Overlay District
 No Code
AG-1
AG-1 CITY

AG-2
C-1
C-1 CITY
C-2

C-2 CITY
I-M
IND-1 CITY
IND-2

IND-2 CITY
MHP
PUBLIC
PUBLIC CITY

R - 1 CITY
R - 2 CITY
R - 3 CITY
R - 4 CITY

R-1
R-1R
R-2
RM-1

RM-2
RM-3
VILLAGE

53



093 058

093 060

093 049

093
050

093
055

093 05
4093 051 093 052001 093 061002

093 059

093
061004

092
017001

002

092 017001 001

093 052

092
017001

Sparta Hwy

Pea Ridge Rd SE

Pea Ridge Ln SE

Sparta Hwy

AG-1

C-1

AG-2

54



55



File Attachments for Item:

8. Request by Zeke Long, agent for Tyler Land Holdings LLC, to rezone 2.76 acres from C-1 to C-2 on 

Greensboro Road [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 062, District 3] (staff-P&D)

The applicant is requesting to table this item.

56



1

Lynn Butterworth

From: Lisa Jackson
Sent: Wednesday, December 9, 2020 7:30 AM
To: Lynn Butterworth
Cc: Paul Van Haute; Billy Webster
Subject: FW: Skiers Marine Rezoning Case

 
Good morning Lynn, 
Please see the request by Skiers Marine to defer their rezoning request until January. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Lisa Jackson  

From: Matthew Zieg   
Sent: Tuesday, December 8, 2020 6:26 PM 
To: Courtney Andrews <candrews@putnamcountyga.us> 
Cc: Tyler, Rett > 
Subject: Skiers Marine Rezoning Case 
 
Courtney 
We met with Commissioner Sharp this afternoon to discuss our rezoning case for Tyler Land Holdings, LLC on Map 103A 
Parcel 062. 
We'd like to request a delay of our County Board of Commissioners case hearing from the December 15th meeting date 
to the January meeting. 
 
Thank you and please confirm when our request is approved. 
 
Matthew Zieg, PE 
President 
CSC Design, Inc 
Office | (770) 345-2579 

 
 

57



Request by Zeke Long, agent for Tyler Land Holdings, LLC to rezone 2.76 acres from C-1 to C-2 on 
Greensboro Road. [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 062, District 3].  

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 2.76 acres from C-1 to C-2. He plans on to build a boat store and service 
center on the property. The proposed use is consistent with the allowed uses, as listed in section Sec. 66-106. - 

Uses allowed of C-2 zoning district which allows outside display and uses that are similar in comparison to light 
industrial. The proposed property is located on Lake Oconee Parkway which is a main corridor leading from the lake 

through Putnam County. It is adjacent to all C-1 properties which has historically been the preferred zoning district 
by the county along this corridor except for a few grandfathered C-2 parcels. More recently, the ordinance has been 
revised to exclude outside display in C-1 which requires any new establishments be operated wholly within 

permanently enclosed buildings as stated in Sec. 66-103 Uses Allowed. 
 

Staff recommendation is for denial to rezone 2.76 acres on Greensboro Road [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 
062] from C-1 to C-2.  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

58



 

59



 
 

Subject C-
1 
Property 

GA HWY 
44

60



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for denial to rezone 2.76 acres on Greensboro Road [Map 
103A, Part of Parcel 062] from C-1 to C-2. 

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, December 3, 2020, at 

6:30 P.M. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 
 
PRESENT:  

Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 
Vice-Chairman Tim Pierson 

Member Maurice Hill, Jr. 
Member Martha Farley 
Member John Mitchell (not eligible for voting due to training requirements) 

 
STAFF: 

Lisa Jackson 
Ben Schmitt 

 
Mr. Mathew Zeig, Mr. Rett Tyler, and Mr. Roger Harderman represented this request. Mr. Zeig noted that 
they intend to build a new Skier’s Marine and boat sells facility. The business will be a sales and service dealership 

with direct access to Greensboro Road. Customer traffic is estimated at two per day and five on the weekends. It 
will have minimal impact on traffic because of the low volume of customers. No one spoke in opposition to this 

request. 
 
Vice-Chairman Pierson asked about the potential noise levels because of the business's boat repair portion. Mr. 

Tyler noted that this store would not be as busy as some of their other locations. The only time a boat would be 
running would be to check their fluid levels. If it took longer than two to three minutes, they would take it to the 

lake. The building they have proposed has an overhang, and you cannot see it from the front of the building. The 
only products they would sell are smaller ski boats and wake boats. Vice-Chairman Pierson noted that his office is 
across the street and is not worried about that. However, there are houses located behind the proposed business. 

Mr. Tyler again stated that if a boat needs more than five to six minutes to run, they would take it to the lake. 

61



 
Chairman Marshall asked the staff to explain the C-1 section of the ordinance that requires all displays be done 

within a permanently enclosed building. Ms. Jackson noted that C-1 was changed so that everything done in that 
zoning would have to be done inside a building. Historically, Highway 44 “Greensboro Highway”, the county has 

tried to maintain C-1 development along that corridor. That is why the recommendation was for denial rezoning 
from C-1 to C-2. She added that although there are a few C-2 properties along that strip, they have been 
grandfathered in. However, the county traditionally tried to maintain C-1 along that corridor along Lake Oconee. 

 
Mr. Zeig noted that they were not asking for anything speculative and knew exactly what their business will do. The 

zoning can be contingent that if Skier’s Marine does not occupy the building that it loses that zoning. Vice-
Chairman Pierson asked for clarification that zoning stays with the property regardless of occupant. Ms. Jackson 
answered, yes. Vice-Chairman Pierson noted that while that is a good thought, it just will not work that way. 

 
Member Hill asked about the hours of operation for the business. This question is because of the proximity of the 

business to residential homes. Mr. Tyler noted that their hours of operation are 8:30 am to 5:30 pm during the 
summer (closed Sunday and Monday). 8:30 am to 5:00 pm Monday-Friday, and 8:00 am to 1:00 pm on Saturdays 
during fall and winter.  

 
Staff recommendation is for denial to rezone 2.76 acres on Greensboro Road [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 

062] from C-1 to C-2. 
 

Motion for denial of the request to rezone 2.76 acres along Greensboro Road [Map 103A, Part of Parcel 062] 
from C-1 to C-2 made by Vice-Chairman Pierson and seconded by Member Farley 
Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Vice-Chairman Pierson, Member Farley, Member Hill. 

 
Chairman Marshall added that the applicants should reconsider their request and work with the staff some more. 

We also recommend that the applicant presents this before the Board of Commissioners, they have the right to 
overturn this board’s recommendation. Mr. Tyler asked how often does the county commission overrule this board? 
Ms. Jackson noted that this board only makes a recommendation on rezoning and conditional uses, and it is not 

final. This board has made a recommendation for denial; however, the Board of Commissioners has the final 
decision on the matter. Which he can attend on the 15th of this month at 6:30 pm in this room and make your 

presentation to them as well. 
 
 

 

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



File Attachments for Item:

10. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - December 4, 2020 Regular Meeting

b. Approval of Minutes - December 4, 2020 Executive Session

82



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

December 4, 2020                                                                                                                                                 ________________ 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, December 4, 2020 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, December 4, 2020 at 

approximately 9:00 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 9:01 a.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
 

3. Invocation 

Dr. Ford G'Segner gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance 

Cadet Jacob Gibson from the PCHS JROTC led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

83



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

December 4, 2020                                                                                                                                                 ________________ 

5. Special Presentations 

a. JROTC Briefing 

Jacob Gibson, Cody Wommack, and Alexis Huckaby from the Putnam County High School 

JROTC gave a special presentation. The Cadets discussed the activities and duties performed by 

the organization. Some of those duties include Color Guard at football games and other 

ceremonies, physical training, life skills and leadership. 

(Copy of presentation made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

b. ESG/EPWSA Report 

Mr. Danny Lyndall, Mr. Brice Doolittle, and Mr. John Eddlemon of ESG Operations, Inc. 

presented an update on the Eatonton-Putnam Water and Sewer Authority. 

(Copy of presentation made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

Code of Ordinances Public Hearing 
6. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 66 

(Zoning) 

Attorney Nelson introduced the proposed changes and how they came about and reviewed some 

of the major areas of change. 

 

Motion #1 

Motion to adopt changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 66 (Zoning) 

as presented by staff. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp.  Seconded by Commissioner Irvin 

 

Amendment #1 to Motion #1 

Motion to amend the motion to adopt the changes to Chapter 66 presented by staff by 

changing 66-104(c)(4) & 66-107(c)(4): In C-1 & C-2, the proposed minimum setback from 

Lake Sinclair, Lake Oconee, creek or river: 65 feet. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp.  Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
 

Amendment #2 to Motion #1 

Motion to amend the motion to adopt the changes to Chapter 66 presented by staff by 

changing 66-73(f), 66-79(g), 66-82(g), 66-84(g), 66-91(h), 66-97(g), 66-104(d), 66-107(d), & 

66-113(d) in AG, R-1R, R-1, R-2, RM, RM-3, C-1, C-2, and I-M, the proposed height 

limitation for structures: 45 feet. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp.  Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

84



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

December 4, 2020                                                                                                                                                 ________________ 

Amendment #1 to Amendment #2 to Motion #1 

Motion to amend the amendment to change 66-73(f), 66-79(g), 66-82(g), 66-84(g), 66-91(h), 

66-97(g) in AG, R-1R, R-1, R-2, RM, and RM-3, the proposed height limitation for 

structures: 35 feet from the highest point of the grade and 66-104(d), 66-107(d), 66-

113(d) in C-1, C-2, and I-M, the proposed height limitation for structures: 45 feet from the 

highest point of the grade. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp.  Seconded by Commissioner Irvin 

Voting yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
 

Action on Amendment #2 to Motion #1 

Motion to approve Amendment #2 to Motion #1 as amended. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp.  Seconded by Commissioner Irvin 

Voting yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
 

Amendment #3 to Motion #1 

Motion to amend the motion to adopt the changes to Chapter 66 presented by staff by 

removing the second sentence in Sec. 66-150(c)(2)(A), and end of section add “to any other 

date as allowed by law.” 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin.  Seconded by Commissioner Brown 

Voting yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Chairman Webster 

(Commissioner Sharp was out of the room). 

 

Action on Motion #1 

Motion to approve changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 66 

(Zoning) as amended. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin.  Seconded by Commissioner Brown 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

Motion #2 

Motion to allow for renumbering and re-organization of the amended Code to reflect the 

deletions and additions adopted today. 

Motion by Commissioner Irvin.  Seconded by Commissioner Sharp 

Voting yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

Regular Business Meeting 
7. Public Comments 

None 

(Commissioner Brown had to leave the meeting.) 

 

8. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - November 17, 2020 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of 2021 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of alcohol licenses made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

85



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

December 4, 2020                                                                                                                                                 ________________ 

 

9. Authorization for Chairman to sign Agreement for Fire Service Mutual Aid (staff-Fire) 

Fire Chief McClain explained the agreement and answered questions. 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreement for Fire Service Mutual Aid. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of agreement made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

10. Approval of 2021 BOC Meeting Calendar (staff-CC) 

Motion to approve the 2021 BOC Meeting Calendar as presented. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of calendar made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
11. County Manager Report 

No report. 

 

12. County Attorney Report 

No report. 

 

13. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner Irvin: none 

Commissioner Brown: absent 

Commissioner Sharp: none 

Commissioner Wooten: absent 

Chairman Webster: announced that County Manager Van Haute has secured a speed limit 

measuring device and its first stop was on Little River Trail where from 10 a.m. to 5 p.m. in one 

day, 234 people passed by and 50% exceeded the speed limit. 

 

Executive Session 
14. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real 

Estate 

Motion to enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Litigation and Real 

Estate. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Sharp 

 

 

Meeting closed at approximately 11:20 a.m. 

 

 

 

86



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 5 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

December 4, 2020                                                                                                                                                 ________________ 

15. Reopen meeting and execute Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of 

the meeting 

Motion to reopen the meeting and execute the Affidavit concerning the subject matter of 

the closed portion of the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of affidavit made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

 

Meeting reopened at approximately 11:55 a.m. 

 

 

16. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the revised Lease & Use of Facilities Agreement 

with The Plaza Arts Center to obtain the right to use the Center to allow the Superior and 

State Courts of Putnam County to conduct its operations. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of agreement made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

Closing 
17. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Sharp 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 11:59 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

87



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

 

 

 

The draft minutes of the December 4, 2020 Executive 

Session are available for Commissioner review in the 

Clerk’s office. 
 

88

mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


File Attachments for Item:

11. Recommendations for Appointment to the Hospital Authority - Post 3 (staff-CC)

89



Hospital Authority Appointment Rules 
 
According to the 1988 lawsuit, Hospital Authority appointments shall be made as follows: 
 

1. Hospital Authority, at their December meeting, prior to the expiration of a member’s term, 
notifies BOC in writing that a vacancy will occur on the last day of February next. 

 
2. BOC, at least five days prior to the third Monday, shall submit a list of three eligible people, who 

have agreed to serve if appointed, for each vacancy. 
 

3. Hospital Authority, at its February meeting, shall choose one person from the list furnished by 
the BOC to serve for a period of four years or until a successor is duly appointed. 

90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



Applicants for Hospital Authority of Putnam County                                                                 12/8/2020

NAME ADDRESS POST OCCUPATION EDUCATION GOV'T EXPERIENCE
APPLICATION 

DATE

William Cooper 

Rainey, Jr. 125 Pearl Moon Drive 3

VP of Rossee 

Oil Co., Inc.

Gatewood Schools; 

Brandon Hall in 

Dunwoody; CGTC-EMT 

Certificate; GPSTC-

Coroner

Putnam County Coroner; 

Eatonton DDA 11/10/2020

David J. Owens 116 Rock Springs Road 3 Retired

Masters in Healthcare 

Admin; BS in Public 

Health

Worked in four not-for-profit 

hospitals that were county 

related 11/20/2020

Jeff Hodge 282 W. River Bend Drive 3 Retired

2 years college-Auburn 

University None 12/4/2020

Page 1 of 1

102



103



104



105



106



107



4 year terms                                                                        Last Updated 12/8/2020 

Recommended by BOC and appointed by Hospital Authority 

HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

 

MEMBER  TERM EXPIRES 

 

Mrs. Glenda Ridley                                             Post 1  2/28/2023 

428 Milledgeville Road 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-6757 (Home) 

 

Jerry Gregory, Jr. – Chairman                             Post 2  2/28/2023 

P. O. Box 3355 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-7283 (Work); 706-485-4131 (Home) 

 

Barry Sanders    RESIGNED                               Post 3  2/28/2021 

239 Wesley Chapel Road NE 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-8032 (Home) 

 

Tom Thompson                                                    Post 4  2/28/2021 

103 Greensboro Road 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-6387 (Home) 

 

Tony Franklin                                                       Post 5  2/28/2023 

187 Lower Harmony Road 

Eatonton, GA 31024 

706-485-5292 (Home)  

 

Judy Fain                                                               Post 6  2/28/2023 

536 River Lake Drive 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-0408 (Home)  

  

Robert D. Betzel, D.D.S.                                       Post 7  2/28/2021 

408 N. Madison Avenue 

Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-6523 (Home); 706-485-9031 (Work) 

 

Daniel Brown     BOC Liaison    12/31/2020 

108



File Attachments for Item:

12. Declaration of Road Abandonment of a portion of Horton Drive and authorization for Chairman to 

sign required documents (staff-CC)

109



ROAD ABANDONMENT CHECKLIST 

 
Name of Road ___________________________________________ 
 

When there is a request to abandon a county road the following steps must be followed: 

 

1. The Board of Commissioners must approve beginning the process at a regular board meeting. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

2. A “Notice of Intent to Abandon A County Road” must be published in the legal organ of the 

county for two weeks. 

 

Completed   Dates ____________________________ 

 

3. Post signs at each end of the road proposed to be abandoned. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

4. Public hearing is held. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

5. Board of Commissioners approves Certification of Road Abandonment at a regular board 

meeting.  

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

a.  A copy of the certification and plat is mailed to the property owner(s). 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

b.  A copy of the certification and plat is published in the county’s legal organ for two 

weeks. 

 

Completed   Dates ____________________________ 

 

6. Board of Commissioners declares road abandoned and authorizes Chairman to sign affidavit 

of abandonment (and, if needed, resolution conveying land to property owner and quit-claim 

deed) at a regular board meeting. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

a.  County attorney prepares an affidavit of abandonment (and, if needed, resolution and 

quit-claim deed), to be executed by the Chairman, and files the affidavit and quit-

claim deed with the Putnam County Superior Court. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

Horton Drive (portion of)

10-02-2020

10-22-2020 & 10-29-2020

10-20-2020

11-06-2020

11-17-2020

11-25-2020 (N.D. Horton, Jr.)

12-03-2020 & 12-10-2020

12-15-2020

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



10. Request to begin process to abandon a portion of Horton Drive (KI)
Chairman Webster explained that in 1971, Mr. N.D. Horton, Sr. deeded some property to the
county to extend Horton Drive. The road has never been built and Mr. N.D. Horton, Jr. has
requested that the county abandon the road and deed it back to the Hortons.
Motion to begin the process to abandon a portion of Horton Drive.
Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp.
Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp
(Copy of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages _____ to

--- --
.) 

11. Approval of proposed changes to the Putnam County Personnel Manual (staff-HR)
Motion to approve the proposed changes to the Putnam County Personnel Manual.
Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin.
Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp
(Copy of changes made a part of the minutes on minute book page _____ .)

12. Authorization for staff to schedule a Public Hearing for proposed changes to the Putnam
County Code of Ordinances (Appendix E-Broadband Ready Community) (staff-P&D)

Motion to authorize the staff to schedule a Public Hearing on proposed changes to the 
Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Appendix E (Broadband Ready Community). 
Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 
Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
(Copy of proposed ordinance made a part of the minutes on minute book pages _____ to 

-----.) 

13. Discussion and possible authorization for renegotiation of the Service Delivery Strategy-
Solid Waste Disposal Service (BW)

County Manager Van Haute explained that there is an Intergovernmental Agreement between the 
county and the city that should Solid Waste Disposal Service costs increase by 10% that would 
automatically trigger renegotiation of the Service Delivery Strategy. That threshold has been 
reached and Chairman Webster would like to enter into preliminary discussions with the City of 
Eatonton. 
Motion to authorize the Chairman and County Manager to meet with the Mayor and City 
Administrator to enter into preliminary renegotiations of the Solid Waste Disposal Services 
portion of the Service Delivery Strategy and report back. 
Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 
Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

Reports/Announcements 
14. County Manager Report

County Manager Van Haute reported the following:
• Need LMIG project requests by next meeting
• Construction on BER will start on Monday

15. County Attorney Report
None

Minutes 
October 2, 2020 

Page 3 of4 Approved 
October 20, 2020 

124

lbarb_000
Highlight



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



Code of Ordinances Public Hearing 
5. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Appendix E

(Broadband Ready Community)
No one signed in to speak on this item. 
Commissioner Sharp suggested a change to Section 5(b )(i) to change from 40 days to 30 
days. Planning & Development Director Jackson explained that the applicant may need the extra 
time to prepare and submit documents. 
Motion to adopt the changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Appendix E 
(Broadband Ready Community) as presented at today's meeting. 
Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 
Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
(Copy of changes made a part of the minutes on minute book pages _____ to 
-----

.) 

Road Abandonment Public Hearing 
6. Consideration of Road Abandonment - portion of Horton Drive (Kl)
Ms. Mary Alice Smith and Mr. Antonio Mullins had questions about what portion of Horton
Drive is being abandoned. No action was taken.

Regular Business Meeting 
7. Public Comments
None

8. Consent Agenda
a. Approval of Minutes - October 20, 2020 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)
b. Approval of Minutes - October 20, 2020 Executive Session (staff-CC)
c. Authorization for Chairman to sign revised final plat for Phoenix Crossing Phase 11 (staff
P&D)

Chairman Webster withdrew item c. from the Consent Agenda. 

a. Approval of Minutes - October 20, 2020 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)
b. Approval of Minutes - October 20, 2020 Executive Session (staff-CC)

Motion to approve items a. and b. of the Consent Agenda. 
Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 
Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

c. Authorization for Chairman to sign revised final plat for Phoenix Crossing Phase II (staff
P&D)

Kristine Tarrer spoke in support of this request and explained the reasons for the request. 
Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the revised final plat for Phoenix Crossing Phase 
II 
Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 
Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
(Copy of final plat made a part of the minutes on minute book pages _____ to 
____ .) 

Minutes 
November 6, 2020 

Page2 of4 Approved 
November 17, 2020 

132

lbarb_000
Highlight



13. Approval of Certification of Road Abandonment of a portion of Horton Drive ( staff-CC)
Motion to approve the Certification of Road Abandonment for a portion of Horton Drive
and authorize the Chairman to sign.
Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Brown.
Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp,
Commissioner Wooten
(Copy of certification made a part of the minutes on minute book pages _____ to

.) -----

14. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution Designating Alternate Court Locations (staff-
CM)

County Manager Van Haute explained that this request is from the Sheriff in order to have 
spaces large enough to accommodate jury pools with social distancing in place. 
Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Resolution Designating Alternate Court 
Locations. 
Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 
Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 
Commissioner Wooten 
(Copy of resolution made a part of the minutes on minute book page _____ .) 

15. Authorization for Chairman to sign Use of Facilities Agreement for Plaza Arts Center (staff-
CM)

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Use of Facilities Agreement for The Plaza 
Arts Center. 
Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 
Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 
Commissioner Wooten 
(Copy of agreement made a part of the minutes on minute book pages _____ to 

-----.) 

Reports/ Announcements 
16. County Manager Report
County Manager Van Haute reported the following:

a) Congratulations to the board and Planning & Development for our new solar
ordinances. Because of these Putnam County has been awarded a SolSmart Silver
designation for our efforts to make it faster, easier, and more affordable to go solar!

b) Advanced Disposal and Waste Management have merged.

17. County Attorney Report
No report.

DRAFT Minutes 
November 17, 2020 

Page 4 of5 Approved 

133

lbarb_000
Highlight



134



135



136


	Top
	Item #11.	2020-12-15 BOC Hospital Authority Appointment
	Hospital Authority Appointment Rules
	Hospital Authority Court Order 1988
	Hospital Authority-Chart of Applicants
	Hospital Authority Ad
	Hospital Authority-Sanders Resignation
	Hospital Authority-Rainey_Redacted
	Hospital Authority-Owens_Redacted
	Hospital Authority-Hodge_Redacted
	Hospital Authority-Board Members

	Item #12.	2020-12-15 BOC Horton Drive Abandonment
	Road Abandonment Checklist-Horton Drive
	Horton Drive So Far2

	Item #13.	2020-12-15 BOC CM Report
	Item #14.	2020-12-15 BOC CA Report
	Item #15.	2020-12-15 BOC Comm Announcements
	Item #16.	2020-12-15 BOC Adjourn
	Bottom

